ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 16, 2014
1:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Keller, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Represent ati ve Neal Foster

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Charisse MIlett

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23

Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Alaska relating to contracting state debt for postsecondary
student | oans.

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 2(JUD)

Uging the United States Congress to act on the request of the
governor to acquire for the state additional land in the Tongass
Nati onal Forest fromthe United States governnent by purchase or
negoti ati on or by seeking anendnent to the Al aska Statehood Act.

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 170
"An Act relating to a defense to the crime of prostitution for
victinms of sex trafficking."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 173(JUD)
"An Act relating to a prohibition on the possession, offer,
di splay, marketing, advertising for sale, or sale of illicit
synt hetic drugs."

- MOVED HCS CSSB 173(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 16, 2014



HOUSE BI LL NO. 45

"An Act relating to harassnment, intimdation, or bullying by
students attending a public school in the state."
- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SJR 23
SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM STUDENT LOAN DEBT
SPONSOR('s) : SENATOR(s) FAI RCLOUGH
02/ 14/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 14 (S) STA, EDC
03/ 06/ 14 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 06/ 14 (S Moved SJR 23 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 06/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)
03/ 07/ 14 (S) STA RPT 2DP 2NR
03/ 07/ 14 (S DP: COGHI LL, d ESSEL
03/ 07/ 14 (S) NR: DYSON, W ELECHOWEKI
03/ 07/ 14 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER EDC
03/ 10/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/10/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d
03/ 10/ 14 (S M NUTE( EDC)
03/17/ 14 (S) EDC RPT 3DP 1DNP
03/17/ 14 (S) DP: STEVENS, HUGGE NS, DUNLEAVY
03/ 17/ 14 (S) DNP: STEDVAN
03/17/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 17/ 14 (S Moved SJR 23 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 17/ 14 (S) M NUTE( EDC)
03/ 31/ 14 (S) FIN RPT  5DP 1INR
03/ 31/ 14 (S) DP:  KELLY, MEYER, BISHOP, DUNLEAVY,
HOFFMAN
03/ 31/ 14 (S) NR:  COLSON
03/ 31/ 14 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 31/ 14 (S) Moved SJR 23 Qut of Committee
03/ 31/ 14 (S) M NUTE( FI N)
04/ 11/ 14 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)
04/ 11/ 14 (S) VERSI ON: SJR 23
04/ 13/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 13/ 14 (H) JUD, FIN
04/ 16/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
BILL: SCR 2

SHORT TI TLE: ACQUI RE TONGASS NATI ONAL FOREST LAND
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEDVAN

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 16, 2014



03/ 28/ 13
03/ 28/ 13
04/ 05/ 13
04/ 05/ 13
04/ 05/ 13
02/ 17/ 14
02/ 17/ 14
02/ 17/ 14
02/ 19/ 14
02/ 19/ 14
03/07/ 14
03/ 07/ 14
03/ 07/ 14
03/ 10/ 14
03/ 10/ 14
03/ 10/ 14
03/ 26/ 14
03/ 26/ 14
03/ 27/ 14
03/ 27/ 14
04/ 11/ 14
04/ 11/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 16/ 14

BILL: SB 170

(S)
(S)

(S)

I3TI232I3

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
JUD

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

Moved CSSCR 2(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS 2DP 1INR NEWTI TLE
DP: COGHI LL, DYSON

NR:  COLSON

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSCR 2( JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
JUD

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

<Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

SHORT TI TLE: AFFI RVATI VE DEFENSE TO PROSTI TUTI ON

SPONSOR( S)

02/ 12/ 14
02/ 12/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 17/ 14
03/17/ 14
03/17/ 14
03/ 21/ 14
03/ 21/ 14
03/ 21/ 14
03/ 24/ 14
03/ 24/ 14

03/ 28/ 14
03/ 28/ 14
03/ 31/ 14

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(H

SENATOR(s) GARDNER

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
JUD

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Moved SB 170 Qut of Committee

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT 4DP

DP: COGHI LL, W ELECHOWBKI , MCGUI RE

DYSON

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  SB 170

READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

- 3- April 16, 2014



03/ 31/ 14
04/ 09/ 14
04/ 09/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 16/ 14

BILL: SB 173

I3TI322I3

JUD

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Schedul ed But Not Heard
JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

SHORT TI TLE: SYNTHETI C DRUGS

SPONSOR( S)

02/ 14/ 14
02/ 14/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 05/ 14
03/ 12/ 14
03/ 12/ 14
03/12/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 14/ 14
03/ 18/ 14
03/ 28/ 14
03/ 28/ 14
03/ 31/ 14
03/ 31/ 14
04/ 10/ 14
04/ 10/ 14
04/ 11/ 14
04/ 11/ 14
04/ 11/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 14/ 14
04/ 16/ 14

BILL: HB 45

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

IITTTITTITTIZ

SENATOR(s) MEYER

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
JuD

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Moved CSSB 173(JUD) Qut of Conmmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS 3DP 1NR 1AM NEW TI TLE
DP: COGH LL, MCGU RE, DYSON

NR: OLSON

AM W ELECHOWSKI

FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

FI' N REFERRAL REMOVED

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON: CSSB 173(JUD)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
JUD, FIN

FIN AT 8:30 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
<Pendi ng Referral >

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTRONI C BULLYI NG | N SCHOCLS

SPONSOR( s) :
JOSEPHSON

01/16/13
01/16/13

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE

REPRESENTATI VE( s)

(H
(H

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13
READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

- 4- April 16, 2014

COSTELLGQ, GATTI S, HUGHES,



01/16/ 13 (H EDC, JUD

03/ 21/ 14 (H EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 21/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 14 (H M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 31/ 14 (H EDC RPT 5DP 1NR

03/ 31/ 14 (H) DP: P. W LSCN, SEATON,
SADDLER, GATTI S

03/ 31/ 14 (H) NR:  LEDOUX

03/ 31/ 14 (H) EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 31/ 14 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 31/ 14 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 16/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REQ STER

SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SJR 23 as sponsor.

SENATOR BERT STEDVAN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SCR 2 as sponsor.

DI CK COCSE

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of SCR 2.

DAVI D BEEBE

Kupr eanof, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against SCR 2.

JAMES SULLI VAN

Sout heast Al aska Conservation Council (SEACC)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified agai nst SCR 2.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 170 as sponsor.

STEVE HANDY, Staff

to Senator Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- Apri |

DRUMVOND,

16, 2014



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 170 on behalf of Senator
Gar dner.

SCOTT DATTAN

Def ense Attorney

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 170.

WALLY TETLOW Part ner

Tetl ow Christie, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 170.

EDRA MORLEDCE, St af f

to Senat or Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 173 on behal f of Senator Meyer.

SARAH PAGE, Staff

to Representative Ma Costello

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 45 on behalf of Representative
Costel |l 0.

RON FUHRER, Presi dent

Nat i onal Education Association (NEA), Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 45.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:11: 35 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee
neeting to order at 1:11 p.m Representatives Foster, Lynn,
Gruenberg and Keller were present at the call to order.

Representative LeDoux arrived as the neeting was in progress.

SIJR 23- CONST. AM STUDENT LOAN DEBT

1:11: 45 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would be
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 23, Proposing an anendnent to the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 16, 2014



Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to contracting
state debt for postsecondary student | oans.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt SJR 23, |abeled 28-LS1394\U,
as the working docunent.

1:12: 13 PM

SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, Al aska State Legislature, said SIJR 23
is an opportunity to reduce student |oan debt for Al aska
students who choose to borrow noney. "Qur forefathers could
never have thought about the student |oan debt that this nation
currently carries or an individual student carries in their
effort to seek a life in the professional sector," she stated

The Al aska Student Loan Corporation (ASLC), wunder this bill,
woul d have the power to issue debt with the full faith and
credit of the State of Al aska, she explained, and then the state
could offer a lower interest rate to students.

1:13: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what the interest rate is.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH said the ASLC currently offers a 7.3 rate,
and by using the full faith in credit, she expects it would drop
at | east one percent. She noted that she has another bill in
t he House Finance Standing Conmttee that would help streanline
the ASLC and how student | oans are provided in Al aska.

CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

1:14: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has had various pieces of
| egi sl ation over the years, and the |ast one was HIJR 31, "which

simply renoves all limting |anguage from that section, so it
would no longer be limted to capital inprovenents or housing
| oans for veterans.”" He said he is glad "we're noving in this
direction, because this is one of a very few provisions in the
[ Alaska] Constitution; this one sentence now wll have been
anended twice, minly because different subjects conme up for
| oans than they had in the md-1950s." He surm sed that at sone
point there will be a desire to have loans floated that wll

allow entering into sone business deals—+t nmay not be capita
construction but maybe things that just technically do not fit
under “one of these things." He said that he wants future
| egislatures to be able to run this state with the nost

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 16, 2014



flexibility possible and to let them decide if they need to use
this as a nethod. He referred to a recent article by fornmer
Governor Frank Murkowski wurging that the Al aska Permanent Fund
be used for "this," and Representative Guenberg said he does
not want to have to use the pernmanent fund.

1:16: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report SJR 23 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
Seeing no objection, SIJR 23 passed out of the House Judiciary
St andi ng Comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he had Legislative Legal and
Research Services wite a paper on the very few sections of the
Al aska Constitution that have been anended nore than once.
There are only two others, he explained, and one deals with the
termse of legislators and the other deals with the nunber of
judges. "Nothing at all like this," he added.

1:17: 25 PM

SCR _ 2- ACQUI RE TONGASS NATI ONAL FOREST LAND

1:17: 39 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 2(JUD), Urging the
governor to acquire land in the Tongass National Forest fromthe
United States governnent by purchase or negotiation or by
seeki ng anendnent to the Al aska Statehood Act.

1: 19: 25 PM

SENATOR BERT STEDVAN, Alaska State Legislature, said the
resolution deals with the Tongass National Forest and indicated
that the Tongass National Forest was created in 1907. At the
end of WNI, Japan needed a tinber supply and 1|ooked to
Sout heast Al aska for that, and that helped create pulp mlls in
Sitka and Ketchikan. Both had sawm|ls as well, he said. Based
on the economics at that tine, the desire was to create year-
round jobs in Southeast Al aska on federal forest lands. He said
that the political climate has changed since, and the 50-year

| ogging contracts were shortened to account for that. Today,
the pulp mlls are being closed and renoved and both sawmlls
are gone, he explained. He noted a nediumsized sawm ||l on

Prince of Wales Island, and said the tinber industry is unlike

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 16, 2014



it was 30 years ago. |If Anchorage lost its airport, it would be
of simlar inpact to the econony, he stated.

1:21: 33 PM
SENATOR STEDMVAN said what he is trying to do now is to stabilize

the econony in Southeast Alaska; the population "has been
paral yzed for quite some tinme while the growth is in Anchorage

and Mat-Su." A few years ago it was forecasted that the region
would lose up to 20 to 30 percent of its population, and that
has not happened because of the hard work of many. "But we
could do better," he said. In trying to ensure tinber for the
remaining saw mll and the other operators and to have nore
| ocal and state control, Al aska needs to select sone |ands out
of the Tongass National Forest, he opined. If Al aska cannot get

the land through the Statehood Act, SCR 2 encourages the
governor to discuss purchasing the land, out right, from the

federal governnent. He said, "Do whatever we can to get nore
land into the State of Alaska's hands...and other private
i ndi vidual 's hands,"” including Al aska Native corporations. The

| ess federal land there is in Al aska, the better off the state
is, because Alaska is a resource extraction state and is
different from the East Coast, he explained. He said it is
difficult to keep year-round jobs when the economc strings are
pul l ed out of Washington D.C. instead of locally. He added that
it is inportant to support the governor in his endeavors to push
back against the federal governnment and to try to get sone
private land and state |and out of the Tongass.

1: 24: 02 PM

CHAI R KELLER said he is on a citizen's advisory conm ssion that
had a summt |ast summer on federal overreach. The testinony
was that the U S. Forest Service has gone from a phil osophy of
"wor ki ng forests" to preservation.

DICK COOSE, Ketchikan, said he is retired from the Forest
Service but is speaking for hinself. He worked as a |and
manager on the Tongass National Forest for 14 years, he noted.
He said he supports SCR 2, because the federal governnent no
| onger has the desire or the capability to nanage federal | ands
for the health of the lands and the benefit of the |ocal people.
He said he sees little hope that the federal government wll
change its attitude, but the state has a proven record of good
forest managenent, and the Statehood Act's limt of 400,000
acres was OK when there were two pulp mlls, but today that
[imtation is not necessary. The mlls were driven out by "the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 16, 2014



feds,” he opined, and the state would be the best mnager.
Al aska needs to take ownership of the entire national forest or
it should select 5 mllion acres, he added.

1:26:18 PM

DAVI D BEEBE, representing the City of Kupreanof, said SCR 2 is
at odds wth Article WVIII, Section 4, of the Al aska
Constitution, which mandates nmanaging fish, forests, and
wildlife under sustained yield principles. He said sustained

yield requires that ecosystens function wthout significant
impai rment, and the state has |ong known that inpairing forests
in Southeast Al aska precludes the sustainable yield of Sitka
bl ack-tailed deer. He told the conmttee that a nmjor synposium
in Juneau in 1978 documented the <concern for future deer
popul ations from clearcut logging, and in 1993 the Al aska Board
of Gane passed a resolution unaninmously reconmmending the
protection of high-volune old growmh forests because the Al aska
Constitution mandates wldlife resources to be nanaged on a

sustained-yield basis for all of the people of Al aska.
Enmergency closures and significant restrictions on deer hunting
presently exist in a 20-mle radius around the Cty of

Kupreanof, he stated, and it is not a new problem
1:27:54 PM

MR. BEEBE said Mtkof Island first suffered severe restrictions
to its deer populations in the early 1970s, and the deer nunbers

are not recovering 40 years |later. He explained that the
structure and function of the habitat, according to the best
avai l able science, wll not be restored for two centuries or
nor e. If SCR 2 passes and its ultinate ends are achieved,
Al aska can expect a nuch larger rural subsistence predicanent to
occur across nore of Southeast Al aska. He noted that Gordon

Harrison, the author of the Alaska Constitution Citizen's Quide,
said that Al aska's delegate to Congress, Bob Bartlett, wanted to
defend against "freewheeling disposals of public resources and
colonial style exploitation,” and that is precisely the centra
prem se of SCR 2. The constitution establishes the obligation
of the governnent, including the legislature, to assure
sust ai ned yi el d managenent, and he urged the conmttee to uphold
the oath the nenbers took to defend the constitution by voting
no on SCR 2.

1: 29: 28 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 16, 2014



JAMES SULLI VAN, Sout heast Al aska Conservation Council (SEACC),
said that SEACC al so opposes SCR 2. The resol ution proposes a
return to a "tinber-first" forest policy on the Tongass Nati onal
Forest, and it attacks the Forest Service's attenpt to create an
integrated forest plan that takes into account the numerous
aspects and uses of the forest, he stated. The resolution
ignores the needs and desires of the local conmunities in order
to cater to a single industry. Federal law requires multi-use
and sustained yield of all renewable forest resources, he
stated, but state forests are managed primarily for tinber,
which is in direct conflict with the Al aska Constitution.

1: 30: 47 PM

MR. SULLI VAN said that Southeast Al aska has adapted to a new
Tongass. He noted that the sponsor of SCR 2 spoke of decisions
made after WA I, but that is a step back in time and in the
wrong direction, he opined. Communities have transitioned to a
new econony and are inproving wages and the quality of life. He
sai d the Sout heast Conference Annual Report states:

It is a good tinme to live and work in Southeast
Al aska. The econony of Southeast Alaska is in an
expansi on phase and has been since 2008. Between 2010
and 2012, the economc growh of the region has
i ntensified. Nearly every single econom c indicator
for the region is up and continues to rise.

MR. SULLIVAN said the report also states that the region has
nore workers than ever, along with the highest total payroll,
even when adjusted for inflation. He added that Southeast
Al aska has gone through a difficult transition with the |oss of
the two pulp mlls, but the region is diversifying and turning
into a nore vibrant econony. He asked that the commttee |et
t he Tongass National Forest transition the way it is.

1:32: 49 PM

MR, SULLI VAN said the sponsor of SCR 2 has previously stated
that the resolution is designed to open up a discussion about
the Tongass, but any discussion about |and use should
acknowl edge it as a "salnon forest” and incorporate tourism
fishing, subsistence use, and energy along with tinmber. Al are
inmportant to Southeast Al askans, he said, and all are being

ignored in the resolution. He said he does not want to kill the
ti mber industry, but he wants an industry that will not destroy
all the other industries. He al so encouraged the governor and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 16, 2014



| egislators to establish mechanisns for devel oping governnent-
to-governnment processes wth the tribes in Southeast Al aska
regardi ng resource use.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how many jobs have been |ost due to
the "basic shut down of the forestry industry" and how nuch
revenue has been | ost due to restrictions on |ogging.

1: 34: 24 PM

MR. SULLI VAN said there were over 500 jobs lost [when the pulp
mlls shut down] in the early 1990s. Currently, Southeast
Al aska has the nost job growth ever, he added. Tinber is a nuch
smal l er part of that industry in the region, he said, and even
though the large pulp mlls are gone and there is a dimnished
nunber of |ogs being exported, there are well over a dozen snal
working mlls wthin the comunities. "W woul d encourage this
| egislature to find ways of enhancing and finding ways to help
those small mlls that live in the community and are creating
jobs in the comunity and putting food on the plates of their
famlies." For the nost part, the small mlls have access to
enough tinber, but, he suggested, the legislature could help
t hem di versify.

1: 35: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how nuch revenue has been lost to
Al aska from what sone would call a shutdown of | ogging.

MR, SULLIVAN said there is no shutdown; over 150 mllion board
feet of tinber was taken out of Southeast Al aska | ast year.

CHAIR KELLER noted that the Departnment of Fish and Gane has
primary managenent of wldlife. He asked if the state will be
i ncapable [of managenent]. He then said that DNR (Al aska
Departnment of Natural Resources) is fully capable of handling
managemnment under the state.

MR, SULLI VAN said the danger is not who is managi ng Al aska's
wildlife. The danger is what decision are made for Al aska's
habitat, he clarified. He said wildlife nanagers will be forced
to neke decisions that they do not want to make, and the
Endangered Species Act may come into play that could actually
affect the small communiti es.

1: 37: 04 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 16, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he has not intimately lived with
this issue, but there seens to be a mxing of two topics, and
the mxing is having an effect on the tenor of this discussion
The first issue is whether Alaska is entitled to get the
remai nder of its prom sed acreage and whether it should cone
from the Tongass National Forest, and a different issue, he
said, is what the state would use the land for. It may not be
the tinme to discuss that until the state takes ownership.

1: 38: 39 PM

CHAIR KELLER said he is absolutely right, and he would rather
not neke that a dialogue between "you and the testifier,”
because there is a lot of talk about the revised TLMP [Tongass
Land Managenent Pl an].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if this is the tine to discuss if
Al aska should be entitled to proceed with its sel ections.

CHAI R KELLER surm sed that the question posed by the bill is to
support the governor's attenpt to negotiate for |and settlenent
that includes the Tongass National Forest in order to increase
| oggi ng i n Sout heast Al aska.

1: 39: 59 PM

MR. SULLIVAN said regardless of who is actually nanaging the
land, it would be SEACC s hope that the acres are nmanaged for
the nultiple uses of the forest.

SENATOR STEDVAN said the intent of a land selection in the
Tongass would be to increase the tinber supply, but there is a

| ot of recreational needs. He said there are state forests in
the Tongass, and the intent is not to get land fromthe federa
government and clearcut it all, but to get it into the control
of the state so it can control its own destiny. The state has
been a very good steward of game: "Wiere | live in Sitka, | can
shoot six deer; ny wife can shoot six; nmy daughter can shoot
six." He said his only limt is on how much he can eat.

1:41: 36 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked about the Al exander Archipelago wolf, which
is having a status review It would be speculation on the
i npact on whether it is federal or state |and, he said.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 16, 2014



SENATOR STEDMAN said there is the wolf, the spotted ow, and a
mul titude of issues with |and and aquatic animals that a person

could point to as an excuse to maintain federal control. There
are no wlves on Baranof |sland, he stated, but there are brown
bears, so he is not as famliar with [the wolf]. "If it wasn't

for the wolf, it would be just another creature,” he expl ained,
and the basic argunment is over devel opnment.

CHAI R KELLER cl osed public di scussion.
1:42: 57 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN nmoved to report CSSCR 2(JUD) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would |like to see what can be
done, with good managenent, to help the econony here. W are
all Al askans, he said, and it is tine that the legislature did
sonething to help this part of the state—and other parts.

CHAI R KELLER renoved his objection. Seeing no others, CSSCR
2(JUD) noved out of the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

SB 170- AFFI RVATI VE DEFENSE TO PROSTI TUTI ON

1:44: 29 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO. 170, "An Act relating to a defense to the crine
of prostitution for victins of sex trafficking."

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Alaska State Legislature, said the
di scussion on SB 170 at the last hearing was not thorough,
because the conmittee was rushed. Currently, 23 states, and
others in progress, offer an affirmative defense against
prostitution charges [for victinms of sex trafficking]. Wen she
spoke with | aw enforcenent, including the FBI [Federal Bureau of
| nvestigation] and police officers, she found them to be very
ent husi astic about this tool for going after traffickers. Those
who are opposed are opposed because the |egislation does not go
far enough, she said. There are sone people who want to
decrimnalize prostitution and vacate previous convictions, she
noted, and there are others who want to vacate convictions of
trafficking victinms and offer immunity for other offenses

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 16, 2014



(sonetines the victine are forced to sell or use drugs, for
exanpl e). She stated that all of those proposals are worthy,
but SB 170 "is not going there." The heart of the bill is to
not re-victimze sex traffic victins by prosecuting them for
prostitution, and the other is to help |aw enforcenent go after
the traffickers, she said.

1:46: 51 PM

CHAI R KELLER noted that there were two private defense attorneys
and a public defender on |ine.

STEVE HANDY, Staff to Senator Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legi slature, noted that the min concern voiced at the |ast
heari ng was how the affirmative defense would hurt the victim by
subjected him or her to intense scrutiny from the prosecution.
He expl ained that the affirmati ve defense "is just that; it ends
right there." The defense nust be declared pretrial, and in the
trial it is given to the jury, he stated. |If the jury believes
by a preponderance of the evidence (the |owest form of evidence)
that the victimwas induced or caused to engage in the act, then
the victimis excused at that point. There is no obligation for

prosecution or negotiation—that is it."

CHAI R KELLER opened public testinony.

1:48: 47 PM

SCOTT DATTAN, Defense Attorney, said he does a lot of federa
crimnal defense work and sone state defense work. After
di scussing the bill with M. Handy, he concluded that the
| egislation was an appropriate thing to do. The affirmative
defense should be offered to young wonmen who are pressed into
this type of occupation and into illegal conduct, he opined. He

said he sees no negative aspect to a defendant, who can choose
not to offer the defense. It would, however, be statutorily
available if a defendant and her attorney chose to avai

t hensel ves of it.

1: 50: 59 PM

WALLY TETLOW Partner, Tetlow Christie, LLC, said he has
practiced crimnal defense in Al aska state courts for over 20
years. He opined that SB 170 is inportant, and it provides an
opportunity for an individual charged with prostitution to prove
to a jury that he or she was induced to do so by sex
traffickers. He stated that the bill does not provide a free

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 15- April 16, 2014



pass to engage in prostitution, but it provides an affirmative

def ense. Regarding the concern of the bill causing victins to
make thenselves targets of |aw enforcenent and be charged for
prostitution, "in actuality, the affirmative defense will not do
that+t wll have the opposite effect.” Wth |aw enforcenent's
support of SB 170, "the last thing that the Departnent of Law or
| aw enforcenent would want" is for the victins to cone forward
to reveal information about sex traffickers and then |aw
enforcenent turns around and punishes those individuals by
charging them with offenses. "I don't see that occurring,” he
st at ed.

1:53:15 PM

MR. TETLOW conti nued:

The way the affirmative defense works in the real
world is that at trial the defense must produce sone
evidence in support of the defense in order to even
have the jury decide whether the defense applies. So,
the first thing that happens in court is that the
defense is required to put on sonme evidence to justify
the jury instruction that would go to the jury and
allow the jury to consider the issue. If there is no
evidence offered in support of the affirmative
defense, the jury never gets the issue, he explained,
so that is the first hurdle. The second hurdle is
that the jury decides, by a preponderance of the
evi dence, whether or not the defense applies, and it
is the defendant's burden to prove the defense, but

the jury's decision. Utimtely the affirmative
defense not only plays out at trial, but, in many
cases, it wll play out before trial, thereby

| essening the anxiety and pressure and stress on the
victimof sex trafficking.

1:54: 37 PM

MR. TETLOW noted that normally in crimnal cases, |long before a
case goes to trial, there is a negotiation phase, and, at that
time, defense attorneys offer information to the prosecutor in
an effort to dismss charges. Such negotiations are often
successful in weeding out cases that should not go to trial, he
expl ai ned. The hope would be, he said, that in nost cases wth
prostitutes who are victins of sex traffickers, the prosecution
will get that information and determne that it is valid and
el ect to dism ss the charges.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 16, 2014



1: 55: 07 PM

MR. TETLOW said he was told there were concerns of adding stress
to the victins if they have to testify against the traffickers
and be subject to cross-exam nation. Sinmply by offering
evidence at trial or in the negotiation phase, the victinms do
not automatically make thenselves a wtness against the

traffickers. He said victinse can elect not to cooperate, and
they may not always be the best w tnesses for the prosecutors or
investigators. Law enforcenent will want to amass nore evi dence

than just the victins' statements, but their information may
allow | aw enforcenent to pursue other avenues of evidence that
t hey m ght not have been ot herw se aware of.

CHAI R KELLER asked if a victim chooses not to becone a w tness,
will the affirmati ve defense still be avail abl e.

1:58: 12 PM

MR. TETLOW said that in the victims prostitution trial there
are a nunber of ways for the victimto present the affirmative
defense. One way, he said, is for the victimto testify on his
or her own behalf, but it is not required. There are other ways
of establishing the affirmative defense wthout having the
victim testify, he explained. However, he said, his previous
comments were nore directed at the concern that not only would
the victim have to, perhaps, testify in his or her own trial
but he or she would be the subject of a subpoena by prosecutors
to testify in other trials [of the traffickers].

2:00: 25 PM
CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER thanked the sponsor for the |egislation
and said that not only is it good for all victins across the
state, but it is good "particularly [for] Al aska Natives, who
come fromrural areas and they end up in places where they have
little or no support group and are easily influenced."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concurred with Representative Foster, and he

nmoved to report SB 170 out of comittee wth individual
recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

CHAI R KELLER noted no objection, and SB 170 noved out of the
House Judiciary Standing Comm ttee.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 16, 2014



2:01:36 PM

SB 173- SYNTHETI C DRUGS

2:02: 03 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 173(JUD), "An Act relating to a
prohibition on the possession, offer, display, marketing,
advertising for sale, or sale of illicit synthetic drugs."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved HCS CSSB 173, |abeled 28-1LS1242\Y,
Strasbaugh, 4/15/14, as the working docunent. Hearing no
obj ection, Version Y was before the conmttee.

2:02: 33 PM

EDRA MORLEDGE, Staff to Senator Kevin Myer, Al aska State
Legi slature, noted that there were suggested changes regarding

enforcenment and penalties as well as a suggestion regarding
listing all the known nanes of the synthetic drugs. She said
she contacted the  bill drafter, Kat hl een  Strasbaugh of

Legi slative Legal and Research Services, who provided a nenp to
the commttee and gave her opinion that the enforcenent and
penalty section of SB 173 does not need to be changed. If it
were changed to a civil penalty [instead of a violation], she
explained, it would be necessary for the departnent to file a

civil lawsuit in order to prosecute anyone.

2:03:55 PM

M5. MORLEDGE said she requested that all of the [synthetic drug
product] names be renoved frombill, as the list will likely be
out dat ed soon. She rem nded the commttee that there were two

fiscal notes that were zeroed out from Public Defenders Agency
and the Ofice of Public Advocacy that would need to be adopted
with this version

CHAI R KELLER said he is disappointed that the |list of names wll
not be in the law, but they are on the record.

2:04:46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he supports the bill. The products
have made their way to rural Al aska, |ike None, he said, and

sonmeone told him how her son was affected by "spice" and how it

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 16, 2014



wr eaked havoc in his plans to nove forward in his life. Thi s
issue came up at a rural Native conference, and his region has
cone out whol e heartedly against these drugs, he decl ared.

CHAI R KELLER thanked Ms. Strasbaugh for her second neno, which
was wel | done. He closed public testinony.

2: 06: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report the HCS of CSSB 173 (JUD),
| abel ed 28LS-1242\Y, Strasbaugh, 4/15/14, out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objections, HCS CSSB 173(JUD) noved out of the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:06:43 PM
The committee took an at-ease from2:06 p.m to 2:08 p. m

HB 45- ELECTRONI C BULLYI NG | N SCHOCLS

2:08: 27 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 45, "An Act relating to harassnent, intimdation
or bullying by students attending a public school in the state."

SARAH PAGE, Staff to Representative Ma Costello, Alaska State
Legislature, said HB 45 was proposed by a senior from D nond

Hi gh School . Section 1 deletes "whether verbal or physical”
[from AS 14.33.220(b)], indicating that no matter the form of
delivery, [harassnment, intimdation, or bullying] shall be
reported to school admnistrators by any wtness. Section 2
inserts "electronic" into the definition of the type of
harassnment, intimdation, or bullying, she said. Currently,

schools nust have harassnment policies, and HB 45 updates the
definition to say that electronic forns of comrunication are
al so consi dered. The bill has no effect on the weight of
different actions or what disciplinary actions should be taken,
she clarified.

2:10: 07 PM

CHAI R KELLER noted that Ms. Page was presenting Version U

2:11: 00 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 16, 2014



RON FUHRER, President, National Education Association (NEA)
Al aska, said NEA Al aska represents 13,000 educational support
prof essionals and teachers, and it advocates for 130,000 public
school students. He noted that cyberbullying occurs in the
shadows and can be difficult to detect. Teachers are the first
line of defense in stopping it in schools, he said, and the
cyberbullying often carries over into classroons. Only 1 in 10

victims will informa parent or a trusted adult of the abuse, he
expl ai ned, and t he consequences of cyber bul | yi ng are
significant, causing enotional and psychol ogi cal distress. The
victins of bullying can experience fear, |low self-esteem
depression, and anxiety, and the cyberbullying victimwll also

experience feeling overwhel med, vul nerable, powerless, exposed,
hum |iated, isolated, and even disinterested in life, he stated.
Victinse are two to nine times nore likely to consider suicide
and according to PEW research, about one third of all teenagers
who have used the internet have been the target of
cyberbullying. He added that sone research shows that nearly 43
percent of kids have been bullied online, and 70 percent of
students report seeing frequent bullying online. There needs to
be a community effort by teachers, parents, admnistrators, and
ot her students to send a clear nessage that cyberbullying wll
not be tolerated. "HB 45 is a first step towards ensuring that
Al askan students can attend school in a safe learning
environnment, free fromthe threat of cyberbullying," he said.

2:13: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that any type of bullying is bad,
including, "the big kid on playground bullying the little kid,"
but it essentially stops quickly. Cyberbul l yi ng on Facebook is
there forever, he expressed, and that is what nakes it so bad
He said there are canmeras on cellphones, and they can be taken
everywhere, including into restroons. "If you try to get a job
10 years later, they find that on the internet,"” he said, so he
strongly supports HB 45. "This won't fix it but it wll

certainly help,"” he stated.

2:14:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she will not object to HB 45, but she
has sone problens with all of the non-physical harassnent
st at ut es. She said she remenbers getting teased in school and
sonmetinmes it was nmean and awful, but her dad told her to
remenber that "sticks and stones will break your bones but nanes
will never hurt you." The nanmes did hurt, she said, "but we

can't let sone of these statutes interfere with the First

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 16, 2014



Amendrent right to freedom of speech,” and it is not just this
bill, it is mny. "People are just nean to each other;
soneti mes people even hold other people's bills, which is a form
of bullying, but we live with it," she opi ned.

2:16: 35 PM
M5. PACE said the statute al so addresses physical bullying.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she sees that in [subparagraph] (A,
but not el sewhere. So verbal teasing, for exanple, mght have
the effect of interfering with sone students' education, if they
are very sensitive, but that 1is not necessarily physical
harassnent, she sai d.

2:17: 40 PM

MS. PAGE said she understands and appreciates her comments, "but
| do think that it doesn't need to be repeated in (B), (O, and
(D), because it is in the first definition, and (B), (C, and
(D) are just really clarifying the intensity of the bullying or
the teasing or what have you, if it's severe or persistent or
substantially interfering, so | don't think we need to repeat
' physical'."

2:18:16 PM
CHAI R KELLER asked why "whet her verbal or physical"” was del et ed.

M5. PAGE said it was taken out so the |anguage would include
students who have been subjected to any type of harassnent,
intimdation, or bullying.

CHAI R KELLER spoke of a bill that basically did the sanme thing
in a different section of law, and his staff |ooked where this
behavi or was already covered in law, "and the only thing unique,
that | see, really, is the fact that we're pulling it into Title
14," and he asked for an expl anati on.

M5. PAGE said that soneone from Legislative Legal and Research
Services can speak to that.

2:20: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 45 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 16, 2014



CHAI R KELLER, noting no objections, announced that HB 45 noved
out of conmttee.

2:22: 04 PM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 2:22 P. M

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 16, 2014



